From: Windom, John H.
Sent: 28 Jun 2018 07:18:56 -0700

To: _Morris, Genevieve (0S/ONC/I0);Sandoval, Camilo J.

Subject: RE: OEHRM

Sounds great. |can on you folks to massage as appropriate.
Vr
John

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEQO EHRM)

811 Vermont Avenue NW (—

Washington, DC 20420

Office: (N

Mobile: I

Executive Assistant: || Appointments and Scheduling

va.gov Office: [(SSHIIGEG

From: (DN
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 9:41 AM

To: Windom, John H.; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IQ); Sandoval, Camilo J.
Subject: RE: OEHRM

John, we will go with something more akin to what USD Wilkie would have said in the hearing (this
group of QFRs is different as it would have been actually asked in the hearing): (pretty close to what you
wrote, just less detail)

As part of VA’s overall due-diligence in assessing various aspects of the Electronic Health Record (EHR)
Request for Proposal (RFP) and related requirements documents, the EHRM Team utilized dozens of

external executives and technical/clinical subject matter experts throughout the health care industry
and had them sign VA Non-Disclosure Agreements . Dr. Moskowitz was one of those experts.

%S)m‘ial;\ssismm / OCLA / Department of Veterans Affairs
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From: Windom, John H.
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 8:34 AM

To: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/I0) hhs.gov>: ST
RIS - co>; Sandoval, Camilo J. @va.gov>

Subject: RE: OEHRM

Do you want to hold or offer the entire list?
JW

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEO EHRM)

811 Vermont Avenue N

Washington, DC 20420
office: NS
Mobile [

Executive Assistant: Appointments and Scheduling

DEONN - cov Office: DTN

From: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO) [mailtohhs,gov]
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 8:32 AM

To: Windom, John H.;

Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: OEHRM

I’m good with the below.

On: 28 June 2018 08:28
"Windom, John H." !_@M> wrote:
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Subject to review by Genevieve and Camilo, here are my thoughts. 1 defer to
them as to whether we provide the entire list of external reviewers. However, it is
attached for easy reference.

Vr
John

A) Electronic Health Record Modernization

EHR modernization—a historic, multi-billion dollar overhaul of the system used to track
veterans’ health records—requires input from specialized professionals to align the VA
and U.S. Department of Defense with an interoperable system. During our meeting, you
mentioned that you consulted with experts and appropriate parities prior to moving
forward with the VA’s contract with Cerner.

e  Who specifically did you seek input from on this contract? Did Dr.
Bruce Moskowitz or any other individual outside of VA provide input
on EHR modernization?

As part of VA’s overall due-diligence in assessing various aspects of the Electronic
Health Record (EHR) Request for Proposal (RFP) and related requirements documents,
the EHRM Team utilized 50 external executives and technical/clinical subject matter
experts throughout the health care industry. Dr. Moskowitz was one of those 50 experts
and was required to sign the requisite VA Non-Disclosure Agreement as did each of the
other participants.

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEO EHRM)

811 Vermont Avenue NW _

Washington, DC 20420

va.gov

office: [NEEEG—_
Mobile: [(EEIEGG—_
Executive Assistant: [[ [} lll}- Arrointments and Scheduling

RS- - <o Office: (S

Sent: Wednesday, June 27/, 2018 6:59 PM
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__ Hutton, James; (NGO (NN C-nc/, Carolyn;

DIEGEE; Viorris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO); Windom, John H.;

IO
Cc: O'Connor, Christopher; Anderson, Christopher; Powers, Pamela J SES OSD OUSD P-R (US)

Subject:

Leaders, please task these out ASAP. We must have them back to the Committee by COB on
Friday and first to SecVA Nominee and then WH. Need them NLT COB tomorrow, sooner if
possible.

A-OPIA/NEE
B, C-VHA/CFM
D-OEHRM
E-HR&A

FEEEEOPIA

Sent with Good (www.good.com)
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From: Windom, John H.

Sent: 28 Jun 2018 07:17:42 -0700

To: Morris, Genevieve (0S/ONC/10) SIS HIIIENEGEGEGEE
Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.

Subject: RE: OEHRM

OK here.

Thx

John

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEO EHRM)

811 Vermont Avenue NW _

Washington, DC 20420
@va.gov

Office:

Mobile: NN
Executive Assistant:_ Appointments and Scheduling
RIS - - Ofice: NN

From: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO) [mailto:_@hhs.gov]
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 9:11 AM

To IO/ dom, John H.
Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: OEHRM

That’s fine. There’s no need to give a specific number really.

Genevieve Morris

Detailed to the Veterans Affairs Office of the Secretary
Principal Deputy National Coordinator

Office of the National Coordinator for Health IT

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

www.healthit.gov | Health IT Buzz Blog | @ONC_HealthIT

HealthITgov™

From: [ - =o'
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 9:10 AM

To: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/10) -hhs.gov>; Windom, John H.
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NN 2 cov>
Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J. NG - cov>

Subject: RE: OEHRM

Can we say:

As part of VA’s overall due-diligence in assessing various aspects of the Electronic Health Record (EHR)
Request for Proposal (RFP) and related requirements documents, the EHRM Team utilized dozens of

external executives and technical/clinical subject matter experts throughout the health care industry
and had them sign VA Non-Disclosure Agreements. Dr. Moskowitz was one of those experts.

inaty, RN
_/ Special Assistant / OCLA / Department of Veterans Affairs

From: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/10) [M]

Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 8:32 AM

To: Windom, John H. <{ G v2.50v>; Haverstock, Cathleen {SESIIIEGG - cov>

Cc: Sandoval, Camilo ). {2 2.cov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: OEHRM

I’'m good with the below.

On: 28 June 2018 08:28,

"Windom, John H." <[\ SIIG va.c0v> wrote:

Subject to review by Genevieve and Camilo, here are my thoughts. [ defer to
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
811 Vermont Avenue NW (5™ Floor Suite 5080)
Washington, DC 20420

Va.gov

Office: IDESENG_G_
Mobile [
Executive Assistant: |||} Sl ~Arrointments and Scheduling

N c - <o Ofic- QN

From: [ENGING

Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2018 6:59 PM

To: Hutton, James; ISESHINEN DISEE C\-ncy, Carolyn;
: Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO): Windom, John H.: h

Cc: _— Powers, Pamela J SES OSD QUSD P-R (US)

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

A-orIARIOEN
B, C-VHA/CFM
D-OEHRM
E-HR&A

FEREEIOPIA

Sent with Good (www.good.com)

000008



From: Truex, Matthew
Sent: 25 Jun 2018 11:58:34 -0500

To: [QICHEN

Cc: DO OO ost-r, Michele (SES);Windom, John H. NS
QIO CICNNN

Subject: RE: FOR ACTION: FOIA Request 18-08443-F - Due June 27, 2018

Attachments: FOIA Copy of EHRM RFP External Review - Printable - v8.xIsx, RE: MITRE FOIA
Requests

Ms. Farer,

Attached is the spreadsheet/review matrix that is being requested through FOIA. (RIS

N, | is My

assumption, a similar determination will be made relative to this request.

Responses to ‘Search Questions’:

Search Questions:

1. Please identify all paper-based and electronic records systems searched for records responsive to this
request. Document housed on local/shared computer drive(s), as well as in electronic Contract
Management System (eCMS) (VA’s Contracting writing system)

2. Identify all search terms utilized to search the systems noted above. N/A

3. Please identify any other program offices that, based on your expertise, you believe may have
responsive materials and provide the basis for such determination. N/A

Please let me know should you have any questions.

Regards,
Matt

Matthew Truex

Contracting Officer

Department of Veterans Affairs

Office of Procurement, Acquisition and Logistics
Technology Acquisition Center

23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

Office:

Mobile NS

e-mail- NS a.cov
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“For Internal VA Use Only — Working Draft, Pre-Decisional, Deliberative Document: This e-mail and any
attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named herein and may contain privileged
and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me via return e-mail or telephone

and permanently delete the original and any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof.”

From: Foster, Michele (SES)
Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2018 8:54 AM

To: Windom, John H.; BN

Cc: Truex, Matthew; m
equest 18- -F - Due June 27, 2018

Subject: RE: FOR ACTION: FOIA R
(b) (6) |

We’ll look through our files and get back to you soonest.
R/Michele

Michele R. Foster

Associate Executive Director
Technology Acquisition Center (TAC)
Department of Veterans Affairs

23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, NJ 07724

Ofc:

@ ChooseVA

VA Core Values: Integrity Commitment Advocacy Respect Excellence

VA Core Characteristics: Trustworthy | Accessible | Quality | Innovative | Agile | Integrated

“For Internal VA Use Only — Working Draft, Pre-Decisional, Deliberative Document: This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for the
use of the addressee(s) named herein and may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-
mail, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me via return e-mail or te/ephon“ and permanently delete the original and
any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof.”

From: Windom, John H.
Sent: ne 19, 2018 6:24 PM
To:

Cc: Foster, Michele (SES); Truex, Matthew;_
Subject: RE: FOR ACTION: FOIA Request 18-08443-F - Due June 27, 2018

I believe this request should be forwarded to the TAC. The TAC team managed this process On
our behalf. [ have copied Michele Foster who oversees TAC operations.

Vr

John

000010



Sent with Good (www.good.com)

From:

Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 1:00:19 PM

To: Windom, John H.

Cc:

Subject: FOR ACTION: FOIA Request 18-08443-F - Due June 27, 2018

Good Afternoon,

The VHA FOIA Office received the attached request from Isaac Arnsdorf from ProPublica. Mr. Arnsdorf is
requesting “copies of a spreadsheet prepared by John Windom’s staff since Feb. 1, 2018, showing all the
comments made on a conference call with David Shulkin, Scott Blackburn, Marc Sherman and Bruce
Moskowitz. The spreadsheet showed how the comments had been addressed and what actions needed
to be taken”

Please advise if your office would have records responsive to this request or if we need to get clarification
from this requester. Please feel free to add others to this message that you believe may assist with this

request. If your office does not maintain records responsive to this request, please indicate such in your

response.

I have assigned this action a due date of June 27, 2018. Please advise if you anticipate you will require
additional time.

The VHA FOIA Office requires the below Search questions to be addressed on this FOIA request.

Search Questions:

1. Please identify all paper-based and electronic records systems searched for records responsive to this
request.

2. Identify all search terms utilized to search the systems noted above.

3. Please identify any other program offices that, based on your expertise, you believe may have
responsive materials and provide the basis for such determination.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at_

NS (A, CHPS, CIPP/G, CHPS

VHA FOIA Officer (10A7)
Information Access & Privacy Office/Health Information Governance
Office of Health Informatics

810 Vermont Avenue, N.W.. Washington, D.C. 20420
Officﬂ
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EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

Item # Comment Response Maodifications to RFP
R#1-1 In this contract (and | may have missed it), | |IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach includes significant detail on the topic. The interoperability section is copied below this table for No change required.

could find no clear definition of reference.

expectations regarding Cerner’s ability to

“interoperate” with other EMR vendors IDIQ PWS section 5.5.4 Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (API) Gateway also includes detail on the creation of strategic open APIs.

(Epic, Meditech, Eclipsys, Allscripts, ete.).

Though there is reference to VA NF-177: Interoperability - Data Standards: The system shall support the use of the health data standards identified in the VA DoD Health Information Technical Standards Profile and

interoperability, my suspicion is that it is by the VA DoD Interagency Clinical Informatics board, including following commaon data standards: National Information Exchange Model NIEM; Health Level 7 HLY; Logical Observation

defined as “the passing of certain clinical Identifiers, Names and Codes LOINC; Systematized Nomenclature of Medicine SNOMED; RxMorm, MedRT, ICD, CPT, HCPCS, Veteran Information Model VIM; and Healthcare Information

data elements” or “the exchange of certain | Technaology Standards Panel HITSP as well as VA/DOD/IPO extensions to these standards.

relevant clinical data elements” between

disparate EMR vendors. This may be defined|VA-NF-T23: Informatics - Care Integration: VA must be able to seamlessly integrate with HIE and external-to-EHR shared services to provide for a seamless experience and to more

as data exchange or interface, but it is not effectively integrate in community care efforts, as well as with other parts of VA (e.g., identity management). This includes but is not limited to the EHR product ability to support

the true, seamless interoperability or external shared services (SOA services, such as identity management, care plan service, scheduling, etc.) accessed via standards-based APIs. (Process Continuity, Evolution, Extension)

integration that was suggested in KSRS [NOW +]

conversations | have participated in with VA

stakeholders. VA NF-Z11: Health Information Exchange: The system shall support VA electronic exchange of health records via other interoperable networks (e.g. CareQuality, CommonWell Health

Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange) by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications

R#1-2 | bring this issue to the fore only because See response to R#1-1. No change required.

my conversations have led me to believe
that the VA was pursuing a contractual
obligation for “true interoperability” with
this Cerner contract. Any such interest
would require contractual terms and a clause
developed, agreed to, and executed by
Cerner as well as the other primary EMR
vendors (Epic, Eclipsys, Meditech, Allscripts,
and others). Failing such a contractual
obligation, the Cerner contract represents an
exceptional current-state software
agreement, but no significant progress or
advancement toward true EMR
interoperability.

Also, the RFP represents a contractual agreement with Cerner. Cerner has agreed to open APls, VA data rights, and adherence to data standards to support interoperability. Outside of
the Cerner contract, VA is actively pursuing partnerships with other health system providers to meet Cerner's commitment to data sharing.
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EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

R#1-3 | could not find specific reference to existing | IDIQ PWS section 5.1.8: Data Migration Planning: - details on data migration planning including: The Contractor shall support data migration planning to support seamless care and to | No change required.
data and the migration of existing data from |ensure operational integrity.
the current VistA databases to the Cerner The Contractor shall:
database. Is this multiple data migrations? |a) Develop a Data Migration Plan (DMP) that provides an understanding of the EHRM Solution implementation sequence and priorities, data quality, data volumes, and data extract,
From how many existing databases to how transformation and load strategy for both the EHRM and Population Health Management solutions.
many instances of the Cerner database?
IDIQ PWS 5.9: 5.9 Analysis And Migration Of Legacy Data
The Contractor shall execute the following data migrations in alignment with the EHRM wave deployment schedule. Data migrations include:
a) VA clinical data migrated to Healthelntent —initially 15 domains
b} Non-DICOM Images
c) DICOM images
i. Reference
ii. Diagnostic quality
Additional migrations shall occur following the overall EHRM schedule:
a) Bulk VA data from Healthelntent to Millennium —initially 5 domains
i. Initially PAMPI: Problems, Allergies, Medications, Procedures, Immunization
ii. Moving to PAMPI+
iii. DICOM imaging and imaged documents and other multi-media will not be included In the initial phases of migration.
b) Iterative migration of remaining VistA clinical, dental, administrative and financial data that is relevant for clinical care, registries, reporting, or analytics to additional domains in
Healthelntent and/or Millennium Pricrities will be determined by the Data Governance Board.
c) Migration or archiving of remaining VistA data per direction of the Data Governance Board to enable retirement of VistA instances.
The Contractor shall develop the data processing scripts including terminology mapping to standards and information model transformation.
The Contractor shall migrate VistA legacy data into Healthelntent utilizing a historical bulk load and an ongoing update stream during the deployment time period based upon the
following process:
R#1-4 VistA and (ancillary systems displacements) |The details of data migration scheduling for VA enterprise data, VA 10C deployment data and imaging will be included in the data migration task order and Cerner proposal in response | No change required.
should have a data migration schedule with |to that task order.
data integrity assurances.
R#1-5 | could not find specific reference to EMPI | 1DIQ PWS Section 5.5.2: Identity and Access Management includes significant detail. No change required.
and identity management. | would be VA NF-15: The system shall be able to synchronize all patient identities to the enterprise ldentity Management System (i.e., DEERS, MVI)
concerned about duplicate records, record
resolution. The expectation should be VA - NF 24: When communications allow, the system shall enforce a search to the enterprise Identity Management System (i.e., DEERS, MVI) prior to adding a new patient VA-NF52:
defined with a timeline and acceptable error| The system shall support the matching of External Patient IDs coming in through eHealth Exchange/CommonWell and other community partner systems.
rate. What is the process and accountability
for duplicate resolution?
Rit1-6 Is there a specific listing of ancillary systems |Yes, VA has compiled a mapping of Cerner to VistA modules to identify what VistA components will or will not be replaced by Cerner modules. That list is used internally by VA to No change required
that will be displaced by the Cerner EMR? If |determine next steps for remaining VistA components. As these components will not be replaced or managed by Cerner, they are no listed as part of the Cerner RFP. The Cerner
so, | did not see that listing. solution replaces all clinical modules of VistA and does away for the need of many non-clinical modules.
R#1-7 Is there a specific listing of ancillary systems | Yes. VA is maintaining a list of ancillary systems that will be retained. As these systems will not be managed by Cerner, they are not listed as part of the Cerner RFP. No change required.
that will be retained post Cerner EMR
implementation?
R#1-8 | did not see a specific reference to system | VA NF-86: User Operational Availability - System availability exclusive of planned downtime shall be 99.9% for the Tier | production systems as defined in the Hosting Scope document. |No change required.

performance commitments. Such a
reference should include defined response
times (user defined performance, not
machine defined performance), uptime
commitments and resolution
accountabilities. These should be defined
by the VA, not by Cerner.

System availability exclusive of planned downtime shall be 99.9% for the HA-CAS production systems as defined in the Hosting Scope document. Healthelntent components required
for data migration and continuity of care shall have the same SLA and penalties as Tier | production systems as defined in the Hosting Scope document.

000013




EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

R#1-9 Contractually, | would strongly recommend |Cerner is responsible for all performance for the new EHR and ancillary systems they are providing, as well as the interface design and implementation. See SLA responses to R#1-12&13.| No change required
all system performance be the responsibility
of Cerner. In other words, all ancillary
systems and interfaces, data exchanges IDIQ 5.5.3 EHRM and VA System Integration
should be assigned to Cerner for The Contractor shall identify commaon VistA interfaces required for all EHRM deployment sites with input from VA. This shall include currently deployed interfaces identified in Section
performance accountability. In my D, Attachment 004 as well as those which VA develops or procures during the performance of this contract. The Contractor shall support all development, documentation including
experience, an EMR vendor often places interface control documents, compliance reviews and test activities required by VA to integrate these internal and external systems as required. Integration activities may include, but
accountability on a sub-system or ancillary  |are not limited to:
system for poor performance. Itisbestto  |a) Existing VistA integrations to external or internal support systems
have one vendor responsible for assuring b) Community Care Clinics —including medical documentation required for provider payment if provided in electronic format.
everything works together as expected. This|c) Medical Devices —Internal and External
is often accomplished by ancillary systems  |d) Mobile Apps / Mobile Devices — Internal and External
sub-contracting through the prime vendor e} CMOPs
(Cerner).
The Contractor shall modify VA legacy systems as required to support integration with EHRM provided that VA will collaborate with the Contractor to share knowledge of the VA legacy
systems to support the integration with EHRM. In addition, the Contractor shall provide technical expertise to VA and its Contractors to support integration with EHRM of Commercial
software as required. Note that site-specific system interface and legacy system modification may be required as site requirements are identified during deployment. VA will provide
access to VA's enterprise InterSystems HealthShare licenses for development of EHRM/VistA interfaces.
The Contractor shall provide interface testing. Tests include steps for nominal and off-nominal interface conditions, minimum and maximum data content, and error handling as
outlined in the respective ICD. Data will be verified on each end of the interface to confirm that the correct data is transmitted from EHRM and the data received by EHRM is stored and
displayed correctly. Data verification will be automated wherever possible. Finally, [the Contractor shall] provide VA the ability to audit all interface traffic that occurs during testing.
For any new code or code modifications to VA systems by the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide the software build/package including source code and required documentation for
release within VA and use the VA approved tool/software code repository which is the Rational tool suite. The Contractor shall change to the new VA code repository if VA transitions
from Rational to an internal VA GitHub repository.
For such modifications to VA legacy systems, the Contractor shall create, maintain, and provide the architecture/system diagrams with input from VA for the EHRM and VA systems
integration using the DOD Architecture Framework {DoDAF),
R#1-10 | have many questions about medical WA has not included the Cerner PACS module in this acquisition due to similar concerns. No change required.
imaging. Cerner is not known to have the  |Also see response to R#1-17.
best imaging solutions, Given the VA
patient population, this area should be
reviewed with a particular interest to
protect VA interest. | would include specific
performance clauses related to imagine
capture, storage, retrieval, resolution and
exchange for both medical and diagnostic
imaging.
R#1-11 | did not see specific reference to IDIQ PWS Section 5.8: BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE,DATA ANALYTICS, AND POINT OF CARE DECISION SUPPORT. This section covers a lot of related topics including: g) Provide the ability to  |No change required.
Population Health Management tools or provision and maintain data marts around specific clinical or administrative subject areas and utilize provided reporting and analytic tools to report and analyze the data
predictive analytical modules to support
specific patient populations (i.e.; chronic
disease such as diabetes).
R#1-12 Some contingency should be made for Cerner is providing a managed hosting service and their LightsOn Monitoring to VA. No change required.

hardware performance measurement
(processing and response times) with regard
to assigned accountability. If the system is
underperforming, who is accountable to
remediate? How quickly?

NOTE: There is a separate Cerner Hosting Scope of Work document that is not a part of the RFP but will be incorporated in the final contract language. Specific hardware performance
and remediation procedures are described in that document including the provision of near-real time views into system capacity, performance, and user device latency on both a
snapshot and trend view. System availability,performance and functional capability issues are handled as an incident with resolution time frames specified by the criticality of each
incident. Detailed metrics will be included in task orders describing hosting and help desk requirements.
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EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

R#1-13 | did not see and could not find specific WA and DoD will be sharing an instance of the commercial Cerner product based in the Cerner data center conforming to Cerner commercial service level agreements. Note that specific |No change required.
mention of service level agreements service level agreements will be determined for each task order.
regarding response times.
IDIQ PWS section 5.3.3 System Quality and Performance Measures and Monitoring
The Contractor shall provide its commercial performance measurement system for system acceptance for discussion and review with VA. The Contractor shall conduct analysis and
design activities for system quality and performance. The Contractor shall provide performance and availability trend analysis and supporting data in the Monthly Progress Report to
show prediction, trending, and monitoring of system’s performance trends. The Contractor is responsible for reporting all issues or errors associated with the EHR solution, and
acknowledges and agrees that software errors creating patient safety risks shall not be considered confidential, proprietary or trade secrets, and accordingly, shall be releasable to VA or|
its agents. The VA retains the right to share any issue, error or resolution approach related to software errors creating patient safety risks.
Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan Appendix A-1: EHRM Functional Key Performance Indicators includes over 120 areas of clinical measurement along with specific detail on VA
priorities and Cerner Lights On measurement capabilities. These metrics will be included as appropriate in each task order with VA surveillance on Cerner performance against these
metrics.
Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan Appendix A-2: EHRM Non-Functional Key Performance Indicators includes 20 areas of technical measurement along with critical success factors and
suggested numerical measures, These metrics will be included as appropriate in each task order with VA surveillance on Cerner performance against these metrics.
R#1-14 | did not see and could not find specific IDIQ PWS section 5.3.2 Continuity of Operations {COOP), Disaster Recovery (DR), and Business Continuity Planning Services. No change required.
mention of service level agreements
regarding disaster recovery, backup, IDIQ PWS section 5.3 Hosting requires: ¢) Provide a primary and alternate data center to support continuity of operations and disaster recovery requirements.
contingency or business/service cantinuity.
VA -FR-19: N ge Clinical Doc Includes the ability to create, modify, authenticate and ensure continuity of record with fail over and disaster recovery.
NOTE: There is a separate Cerner Hosting Scope of Work document that is not a part of the RFP but will be incorporated in the final contract language. Specific service level agreements
related to disaster recovery, backup, contingency and business/service continuity have been negotiated with Cerner to ensure VA requirements are met.
R#1-15 | did not see sufficient detail related to the |VA-FR-23 Manage Remote Care: No change required.

incorporation of emerging technologies such
as self-service, remote monitoring and
telehealth solutions. | would include
artificial intelligence (Al) as a clause as well.

Provides the ability to interact with patients and providers, provide care, treatment, and education to the patient population unable to physically present at a VA medical facility.
Includes the ability to support coordinated, bi-directional patient /provider and provider/provider communications electronically in a secure manner. Includes connected care
modalities of telehealth, remote home monitoring, point of service kiosks, mobile applications/tools.

Includes the ability to customize the patient portal and associated mobile applications with VA-specific content, branding and transactional services such as healthcare enrollment
application, Veteran profile update, claim status and other VA services.

VA-FR-23: Remote access:

Provides the ability to interact with patients and providers, provide care, treatment, and education to the patient population unable to physically present at a VA medical facility.
Includes the ability to support coordinated, bi-directional patient /provider and provider/provider communications electronically in a secure manner. Includes connected care
maodalities of telehealth, remote home monitoring, point of service kiosks, & mobile applications/tools.

IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.2: Innovation Categories: includes significant detail covering future-facing development. Specifically:

d) An extension of the EHRM using either Contractor-dependent or independent technology. An example of an extension includes a new application such as a growth chart application
or medication adherence application. An independent application may use Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources (FHIR) and a SMART container to visualize the application in the
EHRM. An example of a Contractor-dependent innovation is a similar application that leverages Contractor proprietary objects-oriented technologies and APIs to connect the
application to the EHRM. The Task Order will describe the specific requirements of Contractor to sustain the extension. An extension will typically be owned by Contractor and licensed
to the VA with unlimited rights and subsequently made available under an open source license such as APACHE, Version 2.

e) An open innovation is a foundational, platform independent technology that may be utilized with Contractor solutions but has independent value outside of Contractor's platforms.
Examples include Cerner terminologies, ontologies, methods of developing healthcare IT content, standards processes and rules, for example, such as those employed to program
Cerner’'s population health solutions. Open innovation Intellectual Property (IP) will be committed to an open source community or public domain, as appropriate and mutually agreed
toin a Task Order, by Contractor and the VA when such open innovation IP is necessary to realize a standardized implementation of platform-independent healthcare IT content.

f) A joint contribution is an innovation created and developed by Contractor and the VA. If the VA is not contributing funds, then a CRADA may be negotiated to facilitate the Joint
Contribution in coordination with the VA Technology Transfer Program (TTP). The VA may receive consideration in the form of software allowances, future licensing discounts, or other
remuneration, according to parameters and amounts previously agreed by the Innovations Governance Board as documented in a written agreement subsequently incorporated into
this contract or one of its Task orders, and joint inventors of patented inventions may receive royalties in these arrangements in accordance with patent license agreements to be
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R#1-16 Ideally, the Cerner instance should be “cloud| VA will be sharing a hosting with DoD which is currently hosted in the Cerner data center. Mobile and eventual cloud migration are both addressed in the IDIQ PWS. No change required.
first, mobile always.” Is this the technical
configuration? Has that been defined in the |IDIQ PWS 5.2.1.1: Software Requirements j): The EHRM solution shall support broad access via tablet or mobile devices and pursue technology to reduce the burden to the clinicians
contract? Is there an upgrade or migration |(e.g., providing third-party provider access to infarmation using light-weight portals and support for future generation mobile devices). Platform specifics shall be adjudicated by joint
path in the contract? governance and incorporated by VA at a TO level.
IDIQ PWS 5.3 EHRM HOSTING AND MANAGED SERVICES
The Contractor shall provide enterprise datacenter hosting and services consistent with the hosting requirements set forth in Contractor's Hosting Agreement. If a cloud hosting
environment becomes a more viable solution over the Period of Performance, Cerner may migrate the joint DoD/VA hosting environment to a Cerner private cloud or external third
party cloud upon concurrence and security validation from the joint DoD/VA governance authority.
R#1-17 A Vendor Neutral Archive (VNA) should be  |PWS IDIQ 5.3.6.1: 5.3.6.1 Image Hosting No change required.

defined for all image types (DICOM/NON-
DICOM) as well as all other media content
(digital images, video, 3D images,
waveforms, etc.

To support the transition to the EHRM Vendor Neutral Archive (VNA) for imaging, the Contractor shall migrate all DICOM and non-DICOM images from each VISN or site into the EHRM
VNA at the time of deployment to each VISN or site.

5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach

The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care throughout the
health care provider market. Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed,
integrated, maintained, and deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling security framework that supports end-to-
end healthcare related clinical and business operations, Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have moving from task to task and encounter to encounter
within or between organizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care
experience by gathering data, interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks. Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support
seamless care between organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and
Interoperability contract requirements. To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with
other Government healthcare institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the
WA designated standards, such as SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting interoperability among
EHR vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless
care strategy. To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions
and services shall be delivered under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability (IOC), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share
interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

b) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete
referral management activities for Veterans.

c) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health record to
and from DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of
the National Coordinator (OMC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing
(Veteran mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that
supports context-driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the
EHRM to send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagement by VA care
coordinators when notified of a Veteran care event.

ol \WWithin 24 maonthe of annlicabla taclk ardor oward tho Contractor will d, trato o enlitinn for idantificatinmn gnd t of \Watorans at hinh rick of enicida in

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and
record APls) may be provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order. The
Contractor shall provide VA access and usage rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to
address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The Contractor shall also make the interoperability capabilities and product enhancements developed under this
contract available to non-VA Cerner clients.

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform Integration
VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The
Contractor shall integrate the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP API gateway or any other method designated by VA.
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item # Comment Response Modifications to RFP
R#2-1  |Enterprise Imaging VA-FR-14: Provide Radiology and Nuclear Medicine Services: VA is not purchasing the Cerner PACS module due to concerns similar to those expressed by other No change required.
« It's important to protect the VA's clinical, IT and operational needs | reviewers, VA is requiring Cerner to provide imaging storage in a Vendor Neutral Archive. Therefore, these issues are addressed through reliance on the existing VA
around imaging. Cerner's imaging suite is not the best in class, and |imaging capabilities.
there are several key components that need to be called out, to
make sure that if the current stack does not meet clinical,
operational or IT requirements, the VA is protected.
* As an example, if in user testing and clinical validation, itis found
that the solutions offered are sub-par, then perhaps there should
be an option to bring in the best in class solution/s contracted
through Cerner.
= Current and future functionality for enterprise imaging should be
broken down into these core components:
o Capture
o Storage
o Viewing
o Interoperability/Image Exchange
o Analytics
* Furthermore, imaging should sufficiently address needs across:
o radiology
o cardiology
o pathology
o others: wound care, dermatology, ophthalmology, endoscopy,
point of care ultrasound.
* | had helped pull together a brief white paper that outlines key
enterprise imaging measurement, functionality and 'keys to
success' working with several other key imaging informatics experts
and KLAS Research. | have attached this document here for your
R#2-2 » Additional comments PWS IDIQ 5.3.6.1: 5.3.6.1 Image Hosting No change required.

o For storage, it will be important to make sure that the Vendor Ne
utral Archive (VNA) is defined for both DICOM and non-DICOM imag
e types (these seem to be mentioned already), as well as other mul
timedia content, such as movies, waveforms, and "omics" data (e.g.
genomics, proteomics etc.).

o A desirable feature is to have the VNA grow into an enterprise cli
nical content management system, that has three basic layers:

[ a storage layer that is standards based and cloud deployable

[ an intelligent middle-ware layer atop of the storage layer that has
the core meta-data components enabling full interoperability (PIX,
PDQ, IHE)

[ aworkflow layer atop the middle-ware layer that allows for an ec
osystem of various viewers and applications

o The objective would then be a "capture once, store once, access |
nfinite times" with defined SLAs and performance metrics

o Also, please make sure that there is mention of a functional "zero
-foot print viewing" (ZFP) capabilities.

ol also did not see direct mention of image post processing tools an
d functionalities (e.g. 3D imaging, computer added detection/CAD,
etc.)

To support the transition to the EHRM Vendor Neutral Archive (VNA) for imaging, the Contractor shall migrate all DICOM and non-DICOM images from each VISN or site
into the EHRM VNA at the time of deployment to each VISN or site.

Cerner response to follow-up on VNA architecture: Cerner’s Archive for MultiMedia is a single, enterprise-wide archive that aligns with Millennium. This is o single
instance that is considered a part of the EHR architecture, (e.g. every Cerner Millennium client has a CAMM archive). Cerner also includes on-site iCache services that store
the most recent or needed multimedia to ensure workflow performance is optimized.

Cerner also provided an architecture description of the VNA which was reviewed by the VA architecture team and determined to be sufficient to address other
reviewer's comments.

Zero Footprint Viewing: Discussions with CMO imaging representatives clarified that zero footprint viewing if VA imaging and VA monitor display capabilities and
therefore not a part of the Cerner contract.

Image post-processing tools and functionalities: Discussions with CMO imaging representatives clarified that image post processing is not within scope of the Cerner
contract since VA is not purchasing the Cerner PACS module.
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R#2-3 * It will be important to make sure that there is robust data 1DIQ PWS section 5.1.8 - details on data migration planning including: The Contractor shall support data migration planning to support seamless care and to ensure No change required.
integration and performance across all sites operational integrity.
The Contractor shall:
a) Develop a Data Migration Plan (DMP) that provides an understanding of the EHRM Solution implementation sequence and priorities, data quality, data volumes, and
data extract, transformation and load strategy for both the EHRM and Population Health Management solutions.
IDIQ PWS 5.9: 5.9 Analysis And Migration Of Legacy Data
The Contractor shall execute the following data migrations in alignment with the EHRM wave deployment schedule. Data migrations include:
a) VA clinical data migrated to Healthelntent —initially 15 domains
b) Non-DICOM Images
c) DICOM images
i. Reference
ii. Diagnostic quality
Additional migrations shall occur following the overall EHRM schedule:
a) Bulk VA data from Healthelntent to Millennium —initially 5 domains
i Initially PAMPI: Problems, Allergies, Medications, Procedures, Immunization
ii. Moving to PAMPI+
iii. DICOM imaging and imaged documents and other multi-media will not be included In the initial phases of migration.
b) Iterative migration of remaining VistA clinical, dental, administrative and financial data that is relevant for clinical care, registries, reporting, or analytics to additional
domains in Healthelntent and/or Millennium Priorities will be determined by the Data Governance Board.
¢} Migration or archiving of remaining VistA data per direction of the Data Governance Board to enable retirement of VistA instances.
The Contractor shall develop the data processing scripts including terminology mapping to standards and information model transformation.
The Contractor shall migrate VistA legacy data into Healthelntent utilizing a historical bulk load and an ongoing update stream during the deployment time period based
upon the following process:
R#2-4 * Are there specific clauses for 5LAs around performance VA and DoD will be sharing an instance of the commercial Cerner product based in the Cerner data center conforming to Cerner commercial service level agreements. No change required.
Note that specific SLAs will be determined for each task order.
IDIQ PWS Section 5.3.3 System Quality and Performance Measures and Monitoring
The Contractor shall provide its commercial performance measurement system for system acceptance for discussion and review with VA. The Contractor shall conduct
analysis and design activities for system quality and performance. The Contractor shall provide performance and availability trend analysis and supporting data in the
Monthly Progress Report to show prediction, trending, and monitoring of system’s performance trends. The Contractor is responsible for reporting all issues or errors
associated with the EHR solution, and acknowledges and agrees that software errors creating patient safety risks shall not be considered confidential, proprietary or
trade secrets, and accordingly, shall be releasable to VA or its agents. The VA retains the right to share any issue, error or resolution approach related to software errors
creating patient safety risks.
Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan Appendix A-1: EHRM Functional Key Performance Indicators includes over 120 areas of clinical measurement along with specific
detail on VA priorities and Cerner Lights On measurement capabilities. These metrics will be included as appropriate in each task order with VA surveillance on Cerner
performance against these metrics.
Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan Appendix A-2: EHRM Non-Functional Key Performance Indicators includes 20 areas of technical measurement along with specific
detail on critical success factors and suggested numerical measures. These metrics will be included as appropriate in each task order with VA surveillance on Cerner
performance against these metrics.
R#2-5 = Backup and disaster recovery clauses? 1DIQ PWS section 5.3.2 Continuity of Operations (COOP), Disaster Recovery (DR), and Busi Continuity Planning Services. No change required.

IDIQ PWS section 5.3 Hosting requires: c) Provide a primary and alternate data center to support continuity of operations and disaster recovery requirements.
VA -FR-19: Includes the ability to create, modify, authenticate and ensure continuity of record with fail over and disaster recovery.
NOTE: There is a separate Cerner Hosting Scope of Work document that is not a part of the RFP but will be incorporated in the final contract language. Specific service

level agreements related to disaster recovery, backup, contingency and business/service continuity have been negotiated with Cerner to ensure VA requirements are
met.
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R#2-6

= Cerner should essentially function as the primary workflow
enablement layer, and would ideally be able to allow for data to
flow freely across other clinical systems creating a robust
'healthcare operating system'

IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach includes significant detail on the topic. The interoperability section is copied below this
table for reference.

IDIQ PWS section 5.5.4 Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (API) Gateway also includes detail on the creation of strategic open APls.

VA NF-177: Interoperability - Data Standards: The system shall support the use of the health data standards identified in the VA DoD Health Information Technical
Standards Profile and by the VA DoD Interagency Clinical Informatics board, including following common data standards: National Information Exchange Model NIEM;
Health Level 7 HLT; Logical Observation ldentifiers, Names and Codes LOINC; Systematized Nomenclature of Medicine SNOMED; RxNorm, MedRT, ICD, CPT, HCPCS,
Veteran Information Model VIM; and Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel HITSP as well as VA/DOD/IPO extensions to these standards.

VA-NF-T23: Informatics - Care Integrations: VA must be able to seamlessly integrate with HIE and external-to-EHR shared services to provide for a seamless experience
and to more effectively integrate in community care efforts, as well as with other parts of VA (e.g., identity management). This includes but is not limited to the EHR
product ability to support external shared services (SOA services, such as identity management, care plan service, scheduling, etc.) accessed via standards-based APls.
{Process Continuity, Evolution, Extension) KSRS [NOW +]

VA NF-Z11: Health Information Exchange: The system shall support VA electronic exchange of health records via other interoperable networks (e.g. CareQuality,
CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange) by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications

No change required

R#2-7

* There needs to be a robust data abstraction layer that is FHIR
enabled - much of this is already mentioned in section 5.5

IDIQ PWS Section 5.5.4: Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (AP1) Gateway includes significant detail including:
a) Deliver and maintain fully tested contractor APl Endpoints that return data defined by Cerner or by the latest Cerner supported open standards such as FHIR

VANF-Z02: FHIR: System shall support the generation of FHIR resources in multiple versions in parallel (e.g.: DTSU 1.0, DTSU V2.0}

No change required.

R#2-8

* We should account for all elements of data flow and workflow,
including the following:

o Patient engagement

o patient entered data

o data from remote devices and sensors

o claims data/ payor data

o data flow from existing solutions such as VistA

o data flow across other EMRs including Epic, Allscripts etc. - to
meet and exceed needs around the Veterans Access, Choice and
Accountability act

IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach includes significant detail on the topic. The interoperability section is copied below this
table for reference.

No change required.
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R#2-8 * | would also like to dig deeper with you around advanced IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.2: | ion Categories includes significant detail covering future-facing development. Specifically: No change required
analytics, enterprise data warehousing, and enablement of artificial
intelligence and machine learning type capabilities d) An extension of the EHRM using either Contractor-dependent or independent technology. An example of an extension includes a new application such as a growth

chart application or medication adherence application. An independent application may use Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources [FHIR) and a SMART container to
visualize the application in the EHRM. An example of a Contractor-dependent innovation is a similar application that leverages Contractor proprietary objects-oriented
technologies and AP|s to connect the application to the EHRM. The Task Order will describe the specific requirements of Contractor to sustain the extension. An
extension will typically be owned by Contractor and licensed to the VA with unlimited rights and subsequently made available under an open source license such as
APACHE, Version 2.

e] An open innovation is a foundational, platform independent technology that may be utilized with Contractor solutions but has independent value outside of
Contractor's platforms. Examples include Cerner terminologies, ontologies, methods of developing healthcare IT content, standards processes and rules, for example,
such as those employed to program Cerner’s population health solutions. Open innovation Intellectual Property (1#) will be committed to an open source community or
public domain, as appropriate and mutually agreed to in a Task Order, by Contractor and the VA when such open innovation IP is necessary to realize a standardized
implementation of platform-independent heaithcare |T content.

f) A joint contribution is an innovation created and developed by Contractor and the VA, If the VA is not contributing funds, then a CRADA may be negotiated to facilitate
the Joint Contribution in coordination with the VA Technology Transfer Program (TTP). The VA may receive consideration in the form of software allowances, future
licensing discaunts, or other remuneration, according to parameters and amounts previously agreed by the Innovations Governance Board as documented in a written
agreement subseguently incorporated into this contract or one of its Task orders, and joint inventors of patented inventions may receive royalties in these
arrangements in accordance with patent license agreements to be established that are consistent with Contract Clause | XXX, Patent Rights — Ownership by the
Contractor, FAR 52.227-12, (DEC 2007). If the VA is also contributing funds, then an alternative cooperative development agreement may be required for Joint
Contributions. Joint Innovations made in concert with the DoD may be developed under an Other Transaction Authority (OTA) agreement.

g} A knowledge sharing innovation is a contribution to a standards organization or consortium to advance the knowledge set of the industry at large. Examples include
contributions made to the ONC as part of the Direct Project or the CommonWell Health Alliance.

R#2-9 Does the contract specify that this is a single instance shared by VA | While the words 'single instance' do not appear in the contract, there are multiple references to 'single joint system’, ‘common system’, etc. throughout the RFP as No change required.
and DoD? illustrated below,

1DIQ PWS Background Section: EHRM is based on the electronic health record acquired by the Department of Defense known as the MHS GENESIS system, which is at its
core, Cerner Millennium. The adoption of asingle joint system between VA and DoD will allow all patient data to reside in a common system to have a seamless link
between the DoD and VA. The DoD authorized system will be augmented to include additional functionality to meet VA requirements. Over time, the goal is the
creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed, integrated, maintained, and deployed with a design
architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data, common user interface, common workflows, common business rules, and commaon security
framewaork that supports end-to-end healthcare related clinical and business operations.
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5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach

The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care
throughout the health care provider market. Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components
that have been designed, integrated, maintained, and deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling
security framework that supports end-to-end healthcare related clinical and business operations. Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have
maving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between organizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans
execute smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data, interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks.
Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between organizations that employ different EHR systems.
The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract requirements. To accomplish this,
the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare institutions,
and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards,
such as SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting
interoperability among EHR vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches
that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy. To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following
timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services shall be delivered under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability (IOC), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the
EHRM to share interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and
Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

b)  Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to
complete referral management activities for Veterans.

c) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal
health record to and from DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health
and Human Services Office of the National Coordinator (ONC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record
sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health
information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task Drder awafd the Ccntractnr shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers

tord te the EHBPM b cond aned Digct far nntifi e had” feaen tho nrouidar initiafi 2 Wat, cara avuant to hl

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharmg

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g.,
ingestion and record APls) may be provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an
applicable Task Order. The Contractor shall provide VA access and usage rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the
purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The Contractor shall also make the interoperability
capabilities and product enhancements developed under this contract available to non-VA Cerner clients.

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform Integration

VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consclidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems.
The Contractor shall integrate the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP API gateway or any other method
designated by VA.
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Item #

Comment

Response

Modifications to RFP

R#3-1

I reviewed the material you sent regarding the proposed
VA EMR contract and statement of work. | have one area

of concern regarding the interoperability of the system
with community care providers. For the new VA EMR to
efficiently serve patients, maximize safety and lower
medical costs, medical records from the military, VA and
community care providers under contract must be
viewable in a seamless electronic format. The language of |
the contract and statement of work do not require this of
the Cerner system.

| reviewed the material you sent regarding the proposed
VA EMR contract and statement of work. | have one area

of concern regarding the interoperability of the system
with community care providers, For the new VA EMR to
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

In my experience using 3 versions of the Cerner EMR, the
records from outside providers are imported as a CCD or
CCA file and labeled as “Outside Material” with no way to
identify file content or correlate internal study results
with similar outside studies. For example a fax with a
coronary angiogram report and a colonoscopy report will

1D1Q PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach: includes significant detail and timeframes on the topic. The entire interoperability section is copied below this
table for reference.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting interoperability among EHR
vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy. To the
extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services shall be delivered
under this section:

VA-NF-T46 Legal Discovery The system shall support provenance (chain of custody or ownership) and pedigree (processing history how the data was produced or incorporated) and enahble
identification, collection, and production of data according to source, custody and ownership and display of data in business, logical, legal or physical models.

VA-FR-19: Manage Clinical Documents. k. Includes the ability to upload graphs, color images, and drawings that are viewable in the EHR and integrated with applications to support
camparison of examination findings over time.

I. Include the ability to link scanned or other electronic documents to a specific document in the health record.

m. Includes capturing VA and Non VA Community Based Services.

IDIQ PWS Section 5.5.1: Workfl D log t and N lization

j) The Contractor shall enable configuration of the application that supports external community data without requiring the clinician to go to special screens to see and use reconciled
external data. By 10C entry, the Contractor shall support incorporation of the following external community data domains, including but not limited to these domains and sub-domains:
* Probiems

= Allergies

* Home Medications

= Procedures - including associated reports and with appropriately filtered CPT codes

= Immunizations

» Discharge Summaries

5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint industry Outreach

The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care throughout the health care
provider market. Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed, integrated, maintained, and
deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling security framework that supports end-to-end healthcare related clinical and
business operations. Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have moving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between organizations such that high-
quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute smoothly, Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data, interpreting data, presenting

information, and managing tasks. Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between organizations that employ different EHR systems.

The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract requirements. To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide
software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of
the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards, such as SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The abjective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting interoperability among EHR
vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy. To the
extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services shall be delivered
under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability {10C), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share interactive
care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

k) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete referral
management activities for Veterans,

c) By IOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health record to and from DoD and
connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of the National Coordinator (ONC) or
its successor. The lengitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran mediated record sharing), including
appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-driven clinical decisions and informatics.

No change required.
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d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM to send
and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagement by VA care coordinators when notified of
aVeteran care event.

e] Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide, in collaboration with
community partners.

f] By IOC, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the providers via the health
information exchange networks. Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers connected to
the EHRM to have nationwide access to Veterans' imaging associated with diagnostic tests.

£) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information Exchange acquired
Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and research analytics, clinical decision support,
and workflow integration.

h) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic health records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth Exchange, CareQuality,
CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications. Contractor shall support network
record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework and Common Agreement
(TEFCA).

il By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard within a Cerner Millennium
EHR workflow context,

j} Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g., SMART, FHIR,
etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

k) Cerner shall deliver annually an Interoperability Plan to the VA on how it intends to meet the objectives established in PWS section 5.10.4, The initial plan will be due within 3 months of
applicable TO award.

I} The Contractor shall conduct an annual interoperability Self-Assessment against standards that shall be specified by VA, such as those promulgated by HIMSS or future standards to be
identified by VA. The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in which formats). This will help assure
standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

m) The Contractor shall support Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminologies, clinical decision support rules, and order sets, etc.,
to the extent such extensions are consistent with the model and best practices of the controlling national standard. This includes the ability to curate, extend, and share that knowledge with
clinical partners. This fosters rapid adoption from industry best practices, e.g., clinical professional societies.

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and record APIs) may be
provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order. The Contractor shall provide VA access and usage
rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The Contractor shall
also make the interoperability capabilities and product enhancements developed under this contract available to non-VA Cerner clients,

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital V Platform Integrati
VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The Contractor shall integrate the EHRM
to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP APl gateway or any other method designated by VA,
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Item # Comment Response Modifications to RFP
R#4-1 So far, | have no real concerns. However.... might you be |Some of the responsibility for your concerns on staff engagement fall on VA’s management of the project, and some falls on Cerner’s change management and No change required.
able to help me find the place in the documents, if any, deployment process. That said, the RFP only addresses the Cerner side of the responsibility for this. Here are some of the sections in the IDIQ PWS where Cerner
where we might be ‘informing’ Cerner of our expectations|responsibility for workflows/change management/training are discussed .
related to staff engagement in the assessment phase?
Please allow me to share my only real concern (related to |Section 5.1 Project Management (note this section is very high level, but includes requirements for Cerner to participate/plan/support many aspects of the project
mistakes we made, and mistakes | hope The VA can related to your question)
avoid). Section 5.1.1: provide project management support of: communications, project change, organization change, and value
Section 5.1.3: provide strategy and planning support of: workflows, training, change management, synchronization with DoD (which may have a big impact on VA
Once our projects were launched for our deployment of |and DoD user processes)
Epic, we began to meet routinely with groups of users. As |Section 5.1.5: provide requirements and analysis support on : use cases, change management, business process modeling, workflow management, site-specific
an example, we would meet with a group of our Oncology | requirements
faculty, to define functional requirements that were Section 5.1.9: provide an implementation plan including discussion of deployment, training, and change management; emphasis on user role definitions;
specific to complex chemotherapeutic order sets and recommend change management activities; participate in business process re-engineering discussions; analyze Cerner workflows vs. VA workflows and provide
pathways. It would take hours, and hours, to ‘get it right’. |recommendations on process re-engineering, change management and product configuration
We would discuss areas of agreement, and areas of Section 5.1.11: Value reporting including reporting on clinical staff experience
disagreement. We would describe the approach to
resolving differences. Most folks would appreciate the  |Section 5.5: VA Enterprise EHRM Baseline Preparation (this section has more details and is concerned with the enterprise level work that must be completed before
need for compromise, but some specific requirements the first deployment site can go live)
were assumed to be absolute. And folks were truly Section 5.5.1: Workflow development and normalization : some language on configuration of workflows to meet VA-specific requirements; emphasis on
engaged, and optimistic. However, when the ultimate configuration to improve clinician access to external data.
product was implemented, the ‘absolute’ items were Section 5.5.6: Training Plans and Materials: training plans and materials tailored to VA environment; includes tailoring to the localized business process and standard
sometimes missing. And although there were great operating procedures by user role
explanations for the choices that had to be made, the end-|Section 5.5.7; Organizational Change Management: Lots of information here —probably the most pertinent to your comment.
users were sometimes stunned by what they perceived to
be blatant disregard for their requirements, and often Section 5.6: Wave Planning and Deploy t: (this section has some detail on the aspects of the deployment process focused on user understanding and input to the
very disappointed. IN some cases, it took weeks waorkflows being implemented)
{months?) to find a rational and reasonable solution —to a |Section 5.6.2: VA Current Site Assessment: Identify site-specific risks/unique areas; fine-tune the user adoption strategy/categorize the level of clinical process
Rid-2 | have identified no significant issues. As you We have not defined many crystal clear metrics at the IDIQ level — primarily because the IDIQ covers so many different topics that would have different metrics No change required.

appropriately indicated, the document is the summary of
thousands of hours of hard work and the contributions of
many. And, more importantly, you are purchasing a
product, not building a city. You have captured much of
what | would expect to be included.

To some degree, my concerns are related to the ability to
ensure success or measure success, or identify success - or
failure. | worry NOT that you haven't included the
appropriate level of requirements, but that, in fact you
have included them, but may not be able to ascertain the
delivery of the requirements, or the satisfaction of the
goals, or the realization of the deliverables. |am
concerned that you may not have the appropriate
governance processes in place, in partnership with the
contractor, to accurately or comprehensively realize that
you have, or have not, received what has been identified,
or what is required, or what is expected. |see evidence
of great expectations, but | can’t seem to locate the
methodology by which you will be able to ensure that
your vendor has delivered what has been identified and
the degree of quality that exists within the deliverable.

Examples are throughout.... change management,
workflow changes, enhancement to processes, culture
change, safety, efficiencies, etc.

attached to each: hosting, deployment, training, change management. Each of these will have metrics spelled out along with a Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan
(describing how VA will monitor the metrics) tailored to each individual task order as they are issued. We do have high level metrics for system availability: 99.9%,
and for Cerner to provide no less than the commercial service level agreement that is provided to all other customers. We also anticipate that metrics will change
over the 10year course of the contract as we become smarter about what to measure and how to declare success. So, as you stated, there are not many detailed
metrics stated at the IDIQ level.

However, there are is a lot of work well underway at VA to address your concerns — this work is not documented in the RFP since it is VA responsibility, and therefore
not a Cerner contract item:

o Set up joint governance boards with the DoD

o Set up enterprise VA governance over clinical workflows/configurations/and issue resolution

o Set up VA local governance for each site deployment

o Set up VA communication, site logistic and pre-deployment infrastructure upgrade teams

o Document current VistA performance levels as a baseline

o Develop value measurement processes

o Create specific performance metrics for each task order: (e.g. ‘definition of done’ for deployment —what benchmarks have to be achieved before Cerner can leave
the deployment site, user adoption rates? Clinician satisfaction? Successful independent testing? etc. —all this is a underway and incorporating lessons learned from
the initial DoD implementation)

VA and DoD will be sharing an instance of the commercial Cerner product based in the Cerner data center conforming to Cerner commercial service level agreements.
Note that specific service level agreements will be determined for each task order.

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

5104 Seamless Iniér_ope-raﬁititv / Joint Indu-str-y Outreach
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
moving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between organizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute
smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data, interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks. Currently,
industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements
Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract requirements. To accomplish this, the Contractor shall
provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare institutions, and outside entities
through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards, such as SMART on FHIR and
SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting
interoperahility among EHR vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may
support the EHRM seamless care strategy. To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the
following interoperability software solutions and services shall be delivered under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability (IOC), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the
EHRM to share interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in
managing Veteran care.

b) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to
complete referral management activities for Veterans.

c) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health
record to and from DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human
Services Office of the National Coordinator (ONC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as
Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange
shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers
connected to the EHRM to send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable
proactive engagement by VA care coordinators when notified of a Veteran care event.

e) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide,
in collaboration with community partners.

f] By IOC, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the
providers via the health information exchange networks. Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling
VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM to have nationwide access to Veterans' imaging associated with diagnostic tests.

g) By IOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information
Exchange acquired Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and
research analytics, clinical decision support, and workflow integration.

h) By I0C, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic health records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth
Exchange, CareQuality, CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content
specifications. Contractor shall support network record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical
standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework and Common Agreement (TEFCA).

i) By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard
within a Cerner Millennium EHR workflow context.

i) Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based
applications (e.g., SMART, FHIR, etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

k) Cerner shall deliver annually an Interoperability Plan to the VA on how it intends to meet the objectives established in PWS section 5.10.4. The initial plan will be
due within 3 months of applicable TO award.

I} The Contractor shall conduct an annual Interoperability Self-Assessment against standards that shall be specified by VA, such as those promulgated by HIMSS or
future standards to be identified by VA. The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in
which formats). This will help assure standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

m) The Contractor shall support Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminoclogies, clinical decision support
rules, and order sets, etc., to the extent such extensions are consistent with the model and best practices of the controlling national standard. This includes the ability
to curate, extend, and share that knowledge with clinical partners. This fosters rapid adoption from industry best practices, e.g., clinical professional societies.

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing
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In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and
record APIs) may be provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order, The
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
VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The Contractor
shall integrate the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP AP| gateway or any other method designated by VA.
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Item # Comment Response Modifications to RFP
R#5-1 | thought that another reviewer made a good case for IDIQ PWS 5.5.1: Workflow Develop and Nc lization No change required.
inserting specific definitions and standards on the |
meaning and use of "interoperability,” especially since j) The Contractor shall enable configuration of the application that supports external community data without requiring the clinician to go to special screens to see and use reconciled
that term has as many meanings in the industry as those  |external data. By I0C entry, the Contractor shall support incorporation of the following external community data domains, including but not limited to these domains and sub-domains:
who speak it. Itis so easy for the contractor to proceed * Problems
down a design path using one definition or standard while | » Allergies
the users will require a totally different standard. That * Home Medications
runs the risk of not being discovered until later, perhaps | * Procedures - including associated reports and with appropriately filtered CPT codes
even up to implementation, a very costly result, Perhaps |= Immunizations
a similar problem (a seemingly big problem) that the DOD | = Discharge Summaries
implementation faces now where the users are rebelling. |» Progress Notes
Unfortunately, if this "gap" in definition is not discovered | = Consult Notes
until 10C, it will be very difficult and very expensive to fix |« History & Physicals
(ala the DOD problem). Why not set the critical definitions | » Operative Notes
and standards in the contract (PWS) now and eliminate » Radiology and Diagnostic Reports (Into “Documentation” component)
the chance for any confusion or ambiguity. It will pay
dividends later in terms of less arguments, better initial | By I0C exit, the Contractor shall support incorporation of the following external community data domains, including but not limited to these domains and sub-domains:
design, happier user community, less overall cost, better | = Results
healthcare delivery, etc. Then, with the standard fully o Labs
defined and set in the original PWS, the mock-up test will |- General
be much sooner in time and much mare complete the first|- Pathology and Microbiology
time, allowing the users to provide input sooner and o Vitals
better, eliminating costly design mistakes from the * Radiology and Diagnostic Reports (Into “Diagnostic Report” compoenent)
beginning. The user community can tell you today what is [ * Images
needed to accomplish this "next generation” system that
will be a model for the country and the future of 1DIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach includes significant detail on the topic. The interoperability section is copied below this table for
healtheare . Why would you not want to tell the reference.
R#5-2 | was also thinking about the current reported problems | VA has had frequent communication with DaD on lessons learned and incorporated that information throughout the contract. Topics incorporated include: No change required.

of the DOD implementation seemingly caused by a user
(clinician) revolt over inadequacy (or unsuitability) for
their needs. The VA runs that same risk. Perhaps that
problem could be a benefit to your effort. Why not
accumulate all of the user complaints/issues in the DOD
implementation identified by the users and chart them
out. Then identify which of those issues would be issues
if they existed in the VA implementation and include
them in the contract as definitional requirements. You
have the benefit of knowing the failures in the very
system upon which you are modeling your system...and
you have an added advantage and opportunity to
contractually prevent similar mistakes.

- Management, tracking and reporting of trouble tickets

- Emphasis on change management and training

- Emphasis on in-person help desk support until 90 days after go-live

- Language for additional training and on-site support in assignment of user roles

- Tailoring of Cerner training to the workflows being implemented at each site

- Require tailored training materials and tip sheets by user role

- Ensure that training focuses on clinical workflows as well as technical aspects of the implementation

- Language requiring a single Cerner POC for VA with authority over all activities supporting the VA solution regardless of the legal entity responsible for the support.

Additionally, VA has incorporated DoD lessons learned in VA activities outside the Cerner contract. These include:
- Set up joint governance boards with the DoD

-Set up enterprise VA governance over clinical workflows/configurations/and issue resolution

- Set up VA local governance for each site deployment

-Set up VA communication, site logistic and pre-deployment infrastructure upgrade teams

- Plans for a contracting 101 course to educate Cerner on staying within scope of each task order requirements.

5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach
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The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care throughout the health care
provider market. Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed, integrated,
maintained, and deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling security framework that supports end-to-end healthcare
related clinical and business operations. Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have moving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between
arganizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data,
interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks. Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between organizations
that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract requirements. To
accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare institutions, and
outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards, such as SMART on FHIR and
SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards,

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promating interoperability among EHR
vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy. To
the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services shall be
delivered under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability {I0C}), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share
interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

b) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete referral
management activities for Veterans.

c) BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health record to and from
DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of the National
Coordinator (ONC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran mediated
record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-driven clinical
decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM to
send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagement by VA care coordinators when
notified of a Veteran care event.

€] Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide, in collaboration
with community partners.

f} By lOC, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the providers via the
health information exchange networks. Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers
connected to the EHRM to have naticnwide access to Veterans’ imaging associated with diagnostic tests.

g) By IOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information Exchange acquired
Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and research analytics, clinical decision
support, and workflow integration.

h) By 10C, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic heaith records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth Exchange, CareQuality,
CommanWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications. Contractor shall support
network record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework and Common
Agreement (TEFCA).

i}  BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard within a Cerner
Millennium EHR workflow context.

i) Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g., SMART,
FHIR, etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

k) Cernershall deliver annually an Interoperability Plan to the VA on how it intends to meet the objectives established in PWS section 5.10.4. The initial plan will be due within 3
months of applicable TO award.

I} The Contractor shall conduct an annual Interoperability Self-Assessment against standards that shall be specified by VA, such as those promulgated by HIMSS or future standards to
be identified by VA, The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in which formats). This will help assure
standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

m) The Contractor shall support Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminologies, clinical decision support rules, and order sets,
etc., to the extent such extensions are consistent with the model and best practices of the controlling national standard. This includes the ability to curate, extend, and share that
knowledge with clinical partners. This fosters rapid adoption from industry best practices, e.g., clinical professional societies.

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and record AP|s) may be
provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order. The Contractor shall provide VA access and usage
rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The Contractor
shall alsn make the interanerahility canahilities and nradorct enhancements develnned under this rantract availahle tn non-WVA Cerner clients

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform Integration

VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The Contractor shall integrate the
EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP API gateway or any other method designated by VA.
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Response

Item # Comment Modifications to RFP
R#6-1  |Read and write of all patient specific data through FHIR | IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach includes significant detail and timeframes on the topic. The entire |No change required.
APls and services by [specific date] post signing interoperability section is copied below this table for reference.
a. Cerner progress on comprehensive support of FHIR has
been slow. Only afew development resources are IDIQ PWS section 5.5.4 Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (API) Gateway also includes detail on the creation of strategic open APls.
working on FHIR services. There should be timelines or at
least a resource commitment of some kind tomake sure | \yA NF-177: Interoperability - Data Standards: The system shall support the use of the health data standards identified in the VA DoD Health Information
continued development of FHIR resources is a priority. | Technical Standards Profile and by the VA DoD Interagency Clinical Informatics board, including following common data standards: National Information Exchange
Model NIEM; Health Level 7 HLT; Logical Observation Identifiers, Names and Codes LOINC; Systematized Nomenclature of Medicine SNOMED; RxNorm, MedRT,
ICD, CPT, HCPCS, Veteran Information Model VIM; and Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel HITSP as well as VA/DOD/IPO extensions to these
standards.
VA-NF-T23: Informatics - Care Integration: VA must be able to seamlessly integrate with HIE and external-to-EHR shared services to provide for a seamless
experience and to more effectively integrate in community care efforts, as well as with other parts of VA (e.qg., identity management). This includes but is not limited
to the EHR product ability to support external shared services (SOA services, such as identity management, care plan service, scheduling, etc.) accessed via
standards-based APls. (Process Continuity, Evolution, Extension) KSR5 [NOW +]
VA NF-Z11: Health Information Exchange: The system shall support VA electronic exchange of health records via other interoperable networks (e.g.
CareQuality, CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange) by supporting their specifications, security and content
specifications
R#6-2  |Support for CDS hooks. IDIQ PWS 5.5.1: Workflow Development and Normalization: Within 36 months of the IDIQ award, provider workflows will be optimized to leverage | No change required.
discreet data domains listed in Section 5.5.1 j) using Clinical Decision Support hooks (CDS hooks) or other techniques to reduce clinician burden.
Discrete data domains referenced above:
i) The Contractor shall enable configuration of the application that supports extemal community data without requiring the clinician to go to special screens to
see and use reconciled external data. By I0C entry, the Contractor shall support incorporation of the following external community data domains, including bu
not limited to these domains and sub-domains:
* Problems
* Allergies
+ Home Medications
* Procedures - including associated reports and with appropriately filtered CPT codes
+ Immunizations
+« Discharge Summaries
* Progress Notes
+ Consult Notes
+ History & Physicals
+ Operative Notes
+ Radiology and Diagnostic Reports (Into “Documentation” component)
By IOC exit, the Contractor shall support incorporation of the following external community data domains, including but not limited to these domains and sub-
domains:
+ Results
olLabs
- General
- Pathology and Microbiology
o Vitals
Rit6-3 Support for an HL7 approved publish and subscribe IDIQ PWS Section 5.5.4: Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (AP1) Gateway: | No change required.

(pub/sub) infrastructure and services.

f} As it relates to FHIR, the Contractor shall provide an opportunity for joint collaboration in prioritization of the API roadmap. This support shall occur where VA data required maps to
a FHIR (HL7 Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources) resource that is currently in the FHIR Roadmap and not part of the software’s out-of-the-box FHIR resource offerings

VA NF-177: Interoperability - Data Standards: The system shall support the use of the health data standards identified in the VA DoD Health Information Technical Standards Profile
and by the VA DoD Interagency Clinical Informatics board, including following common data standards: National Information Exchange Model NIEM; Health Level 7 HLY; Logical
Observation |dentifiers, Names and Codes LOINC; Systematized Nomenclature of Medicine SNOMED; RxNorm, MedRT, ICD, CPT, HCPCS, Veteran Information Model VIM; and
Healthcare Infarmation Technology Standards Panel HITSP as well as VA/DOD/IPO extensions to these standards.
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R#6-4

R#6-5

R#6-6

R#6-7

R#6-8

R#6-9

R#t6-10

EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

Support model driven application development tools that
use FHIR resources and profiles

IDIQ PWS Section 5.5.4: Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (API) Gateway:

f) As it relates to FHIR, the Contractor shall provide an opportunity for joint collaboration in prioritization of the API roadmap. This support shall occur where VA data required maps to
a FHIR (HL7 Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources) resource that is currently in the FHIR Roadmap and not part of the software’s out-of-the-box FHIR resource offerings

i} Ensure Substitutable Medical Applications and Reusable Technologies (SMART) compliance to support SMART on FHIR applications.

i) Provide standards-based APl access {e.g. FHIR) to all patient data from the VA-designated authoritative data sources for the patient’s record within the Contractors’ product suite,

IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach
i) Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g., SMART,
FHIR, etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

Support a “time drive” infrastructure and services.

| No change required.

Provide a terminology server that is compliant with the
FHIR Terminology Module

Note: Cerner notes that it has the capability to return terminology in a FHIR resource request, but do not have a FHIR server for terminology lookup from outside today, since | No change required.
that is something that should be hosted by an outside group. Cerner proposes to work with Argonauts or the driving standards group to set up and additional server for lookup
needed.

1DIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach:

1) The Contractor shall conduct an annual Interoperability Self-Assessment against standards that shall be specified by VA, such as those promulgated by HIMSS or future
standards to be identified by VA. The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in which formats|
This will help assure standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

Support a knowledge repository for all kinds of
knowledge artifacts: CDS logic, FHIR profiles, order sets,
workflows, etc.

m) The Contractor shall support Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminologies, clinical decision support rule|
| No change required.
IDIQ PWS Section 5.10.4: Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach:
g) By 10C, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information
Exchange acquired Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and
research analytics, clinical decision support, and workflow integration.

Provide the ability for the VA to quickly change
workflows. Currently, workflows are hard coded into the
applications. It makes it nearly impossible to change
workflows to accommodate changes in clinical practice.

VA is committed to setting an enterprise-level set of commaonly shared workflows across VA and DoD wherever feasible. Joint VA/DoD governance boards as well as VA enterprise | No change required.
and local VAMC boards are being created to ensure that workflows are standardized as much as feasible and not customized to each implementation. That said, considerable
configuration capabilities are included in the commercial product which can be used to adjust workflows without deviating from the commercial baseline.

Specify the time frame after a new version of FHIR is
approved that Cerner will upgrade its services — one year?

Mote: Cerner has prioritized an additional 40 engineers to accelerate FHIR APIs for VA in support of this contract. There is no specified timeframe for Cerner upgrades in response to No change required.
new FHIR versions.

10. Support VA or other 3rd party defined FHIR profiles
a. Use of FHIR profiles in model driven application
development

b. Ability to test conformance of an application to a
specific set of FHIR profiles

. Services automatically test conformance to profiles in
the Cerner FHIR services

IDIQ PWS section 5.5.4 Data Exchange - Application Program Interface (API) Gateway: includes detail on the creation of strategic open APIls. | No change required.
f} As it relates to FHIR, the Contractor shall provide an opportunity for joint collaboration in prioritization of the API roadmap. This support shall occur where VA data required maps to

a FHIR (HL7 Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources) resource that is currently in the FHIR Roadmap and not part of the software’s out-of-the-box FHIR resource offerings

VA NF-177: Interoperability - Data Standards: The system shall support the use of the health data standards identified in the VA DoD Health Information Technical Standards Profile
and by the VA DoD Interagency Clinical Informatics board, including following common data standards: National Information Exchange Maodel NIEM; Health Level 7HLY; Logical
Observation |dentifiers, Mames and Codes LOINC; Systematized Nomenclature of Medicine SNOMED; RxNorm, MedRT, ICD, CPT, HCPCS, Veteran Information Model VIM; and
Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel HITSP as well as VA/DOD/IPO extensions to these standards.
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R#6-11

R#6-12

EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

It is difficult to discern an overall architecture for the
desired system. | think there is a danger that Cerner will
just add more unmaintainable code | “bolt-an
functionality”) to the existing spaghetti bow| to meet VA
requirements, rather than creating a thoughtful new next-
generation system. Would it be possible to add a diagram
that would show a high level view of the future system
with the relationship to external systems, etc.?

WA is committed to the acquisition of a commercial product - per the Secretary's testimony, VA does not want to be in the software development business. Therefore, VA does not
want to dictate Cerner's future architecture, but rather rely on market forces to drive Cerner to create a competitive and efficient architecture.

| think several of the requirements listed in “003-VA
EHRM Non-Functional RTM (Amended 2.16.2018)" are
unreasonable and/or infeasible.

All RTM requirements, both functional and non-functional have been negotiated with Cerner with the final language approved by both VA and Cerner.

5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach

The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care throughout the health
care provider market. Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed, integrated,
maintained, and deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling security framework that supports end-to-end healthcare
related clinical and business operations. Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have moving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between
organizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data,
interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks. Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between
organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and interoperability contract
requirements. To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare
institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards, such as
SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting interoperability among EHR
vendars, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy.
To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services
shall be delivered under this section:

a) By lnitial Operating Capabhility (10C), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share
interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care,

b} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete referral
management activities for Veterans.

¢} BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health record to and from
DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of the National
Coordinator (ONC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall suppaort Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran
mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-
driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM
to send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagerment by VA care coordinators
when notified of a Veteran care event.

e) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide, in collaberation
with community partners.

f} By I0C, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the providers via the
health information exchange networks, Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers
connected to the EHRM to have nationwide access to Veterans’ imaging associated with diagnostic tests,

g) BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information Exchange acquired
Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and research analytics, clinical decision
support, and workflow integration.

h) By 10C, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic health records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth Exchange,
CareQuality, CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications. Contractor
shall support network record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework
and Common Agreement (TEFCA).

i} ByIlOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard within a Cerner
Millennium EHR workflow context.

i} Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g..
SMART, FHIR, etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

k) Cernershall deliver annually an Interoperability Plan to the VA on how it intends to meet the objectives established in PWS section 5.10.4, The initial plan will be due within 3
maonths of applicable TO award.
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EHRM External RFP Review Matrix

I} The Contractor shall conduct an annual Interoperability Self-Assessment against standards that shall be specified by VA, such as those promulgated by HIMSS or future standards
to be identified by VA. The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in which formats). This will help
assure standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

m) The Contractor shall suppert Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminologies, clinical decision support rules, and order
sets, etc., to the extent such extensions are consistent with the model and best practices of the controlling national standard. This includes the ability to curate, extend, and share
that knowledge with clinical partners. This fosters rapid adoption from industry best practices, e.g., clinical professional societies.

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and record APls) may
be provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order. The Contractor shall provide VA access and
usage rights inte any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The
Contractor shall also make the interoperability capabilities and product enhancements developed under this contract available to non-VA Cerner clients.

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform Integration
VA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The Contractor shall integrate
the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP AP| gateway or any other method designated by VA.
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Item #

Comment

Response

Modifications to RFP

R#T-1

MNeed a medical device registry

VA-FR-05: Patient Tracking: Includes the ability to track medical devices and instruments

VA-FR-10: Patient Treatment: Includes the use of medical devices while treating the patient, Vital Signs (V5) machines, Intravenous {IV) pumps, electronic patient education, unit
tracking boards, bed management systems; physiological devices, sitter monitoring, remote telemetry.

VA-FR-31: Manage Data: Includes capture of right data, right format, and right time for automated data collection from medical devices.

a. Includes ordering and managing chemotherapy

b. Includes the ability to manage data elements from various entry points (e.g., internal/external/medical devices/patient generated) as appropriate for continuity of care, workload
capture,

VA-FR40: Inventory Management/Supply chain operations: Includes the ability to assign medical devices from all medical specialties to an electronic health record

VA-NF-T78: Critical Care: Includes Critical Care - automated workflows and documentation supporting critical care multi-disciplinary teams; Device Connectivity - automated
rallartinn nf madicral dAata fram madical dAavicac 48 ancura richt Aats richt farmat richt fima

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
organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract
requirements, To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government healthcare
institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated standards, such as
SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans. Existing organizations promoting interoperability among EHR
vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care strategy.
To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and services
shall be delivered under this section:

a) Bylnitial Operating Capability (10C), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share
interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

b} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete referral
management activities for Veterans.

¢) By 0C, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran's complete longitudinal health record to and from
DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of the National
Coordinator (ONC) or its successor. The longitudinal record solution shall suppart Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran
mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-
driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d) Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM
to send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagement by VA care coordinators
when notified of a Veteran care event.

e} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide, in collaboration
with community partners.

f) By IOC, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the providers via the
health information exchange networks. Within 36 months of applicable task erder award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers
connected to the EHRM to have nationwide access to Veterans’ imaging associated with diagnostic tests.

g) By IOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information Exchange acquired
Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and research analytics, clinical decision
support, and workflow integration.

h} By I10OC, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic health records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth Exchange,
CareQuality, CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications. Contractor
shall support network record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework
and Commaon Agreement {TEFCA).

i}  BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard within a Cerner
Millennium EHR workflow context,

i} Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g.,
SMART, FHIR, etc.) integrated with EHRM solutions and platforms.

k) Cerner shall deliver annually an Interoperability Plan to the VA on how it intends to meet the objectives established in PWS section 5.10.4. The initial plan will be due within 3
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
usage rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution. The
Contractor shall also make the interoperability capabilities and product enhancements developed under this contract available to non-VA Cerner clients.

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform Integration

WA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems. The Contractor shall integrate
the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP API gateway or any other method designated by VA,
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Item # Comment Response Modifications to RFP

R#B-1 Need an interoperability sandbox/testbed 5.10.4 Seamless Interoperability / Joint Industry Outreach No change to RFP
The Contractor is required to collaborate with VA affiliates, community partners, EHR providers, healthcare providers, and vendors to advance seamless care throughout the health required.
care provider market, Seamless care will require the creation of an integrated inpatient and outpatient solution with software components that have been designed, integrated,
maintained, and deployed with a design architecture that allows for access to and sharing of common data and an enabling security framework that supports end-to-end healthcare | Will be included in
related clinical and business operations. Seamless care is the experience patients and providers have moving from task to task and encounter to encounter within or between Technical
organizations such that high-quality decisions form easily and complete care plans execute smoothly. Information systems support the seamless-care experience by gathering data, | Dependencies Task
interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks. Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between Order

organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract
requirements, To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government
healthcare institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated
standards, such as SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

Note: Specifics on creation of an interoperability sandbox/testbed will be incorporated in the Technical Dependencies Task Order which is currently being drafted.

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
interpreting data, presenting information, and managing tasks, Currently, industry lacks specific and uniform interoperability standards to support seamless care between
organizations that employ different EHR systems. The Requirements Traceability Matrix Section D, Attachment 003, sets forth specific Informatics and Interoperability contract
requirements. To accomplish this, the Contractor shall provide software and services to enable seamless care between VA encounters, encounters with other Government
healthcare institutions, and outside entities through advancements in all areas of the EHR that occur. In addition, the software and services shall support the VA designated
standards, such as SMART on FHIR and SMART-enabled applications, or other published standards.

The objective of these interoperability solutions is to advance the state of the art supporting seamless care for Veterans, Existing organizations promoting interoperability among
EHR vendors, such as The Argonaut Project, have developed or are planning to develop technology standards or technical approaches that may support the EHRM seamless care
strategy. To the extent that underlying third party technology is available or made available to meet the following timelines, the following interoperability software solutions and
services shall be delivered under this section:

a) By Initial Operating Capability {(10C), the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community providers who have connected to the EHRM to share
interactive care plans (ICPs) for Veterans. ICPs will enable collaborative communication between providers, and between providers and Veterans, in managing Veteran care.

b} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and connected community providers to complete referral
management activities for Veterans.

c) BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA to release and consume, via on-demand access, a Veteran’s complete longitudinal health record to and from
DoD and connected community partners, irrespective of which EHR they use, provided such EHR technology is certified by the Health and Human Services Office of the National
Coordinator (ONC) or its successor, The longitudinal record solution shall support Provider-to-Provider record sharing, as well as Provider-Veteran-Provider sharing (Veteran
mediated record sharing), including appropriate consent management. The bi-directional health information exchange shall maximize use of discrete data that supports context-
driven clinical decisions and informatics.

d} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling connected VA, DoD and community providers connected to the EHRM
to send and receive Admission/Discharge/Transfer notifications “pushed” from the provider initiating a Veteran care event to enable proactive engagement by VA care coordinators
when notified of a Veteran care event.

e} Within 24 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor will demonstrate a solution for identification and management of Veterans at high risk of suicide, in
collaboration with community partners,

f) By 10C, the contractor shall provide URL based image access to the VA, community and academic partner systems who can support the URL and a viewer to the providers via the
health information exchange networks. Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a software solution enabling VA, DoD and community
providers connected to the EHRM to have nationwide access to Veterans' imaging associated with diagnostic tests,
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gl By lOC, the Contractor shall provide a software solution for multilateral standards-based ingestion, normalization, storage, and exporting of Health Information Exchange
acquired Veteran health information. The Contractor shall ensure that the solution provides a computable dataset for purposes of population health and research analytics, clinical
decision support, and workflow integration.

h) By I10C, the Contractor shall provide the capability to connect and exchange VA electronic health records via other interoperable networks, such as. eHealth Exchange,
CareQuality, CommonWell Health Alliance, DirectTrust, National Association for Trusted Exchange by supporting their specifications, security and content specifications. Contractor
shall support network record locator services and patient provider associations as applicable in accordance with applicable technical standards and the Trusted Exchange Framework
and Common Agreement (TEFCA).

i) BylOC, the Contractor shall provide a capability for provider collaboration via secure e-mail using the ONC Direct protocol or future VA-designated standard within a Cerner
Millennium EHR workflow context.

J1 Within 36 months of applicable task order award, the Contractor shall provide a solution for a Software Development Kit (SDK) enabling standards-based applications (e.g.,
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
to be identified by VA, The annual self assessment shall report on the state of each data element (e.g., which are supported in what capacities and in which formats). This will help
assure standards implementation consistency and assure standards compliance with evolving national standards.

m) The Contractor shall support Knowledge Interoperability by supporting the extension of clinical content assets such as terminologies, clinical decision support rules, and order
sets, etc., to the extent such extensions are consistent with the model and best practices of the controlling national standard. This includes the ability to curate, extend, and share
that knowledge with clinical partners. This fosters rapid adoption from industry best practices, e.g., clinical professional societies.

5.10.4.1 Data Design and Information Sharing

In support of the interoperability objectives under this Section, agreed upon Contractor proprietary information/data model extension points (e.g., ingestion and record APIs) may
be provided to both international and national standards designating organizations as described and set forth in an applicable Task Order. The Contractor shall provide VA access
and usage rights into any underlying proprietary terminology/code systems for the purpose of enhancing national standards to address any gaps identified in the EHRM solution, The
Contractor shall also make the interoperability capabilities and product enhancements developed under this contract available to non-VA Cerner clients.

5.10.4.2 VA Digital Health Platform/Digital V Platform Integration
WA anticipates developing a Digital Health Platform/Digital Veterans Platform (DVP) to consolidate critical VA EHR and non-EHR operational systems, The Contractor shall integrate
the EHRM to interoperate with DVP, or future state VA platform, including the DVP AP| gateway or any other method designated by VA,
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From: _

Sent: 22 Jun 2018 11:15:46 -0500

To: Windom, John H.;Truex, Matthew__
@bah.com)

Cc: Foster, Michele (SES)

Subject: RE: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request

John,

Absolutely, we will ensure your recommendation is passed along to OGC.

Thanks in advance,

RN
QIO

Director, Procurement Service C,
Department of Veterans A ffairs
Office of Procurement, Acquisition, and Logistics
Technology Acquisition Center (TAC)
23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

e-mai: QN . 2oV

“For Internal VA Use Only — Working Draft, Pre-Decisional, Deliberative Document:
This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) named
herein and may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the
intended recipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this e-mail, and any attachments thereto, is strictly prohibited.
If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me via return e-mail or telephone

IO 2 d permanently delete the original and any copy of any e-mail and any
printout thereof.”

From: Windom, John H.

Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 11:58:34 AM

To: Truex, Matthew; (NN IICHEE— I

DN »:h.com)
cc IO ostcr, Michele (SES)

Subject: RE: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request
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This is why I recommend the involvement of the highest levels of VA leadership
through the OGC channels.
Vr
John

Sent with Good (www.good.com)

From: Truex, Matthew
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 8:54:41 AM

(NN > 02h. com)
Cc Foster, Michele (SES)

Subject: RE: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request

John — Understood. We will send the document as-is to the FOIA Office and copy our
OGC procurement law group. The FOIA Office will coordinate with the OGC Information
Law Group as well.

Thanks,
Matt

Matthew Truex

Contracting Officer

Department of Veterans Affairs

Office of Procurement, Acquisition and Logistics
Technology Acquisition Center

23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

Office: [ NEEG_

Mobile: NN

e-mail] va.gov

A3 A
{ wf"‘r AU

E

i .

1 CAR

“For Internal VA Use Only — Working Draft, Pre-Decisional, Deliberative Document: This e-mail
and any attachments are intended only for the use of the addressee(s) hamed herein and may
contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-
mail, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail, and any
attachments thereto, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
me via retum e-mail or te/ephone* and permanently delete the original and any
copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof.”
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From: Windom, John H.
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 8:47 AM

o CICH—— (N
an.com

c: Truex, Matthew
Subject: RE: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request

What does OGC say?

The info is what it is? Not my call. There involvement was
tfostered by the former Secretary not us. We are clean and have written a contract to
reflect the requirements of the VA.

Vr

John

Sent with Good (www.good.com)

From: ERNENI

Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 5:30:06 AM

To: Gabbert, Jeffrey A. (Mission); 'Cosmas, Laura [USA]' (Cosmas_Laura@bah.com)
Cc: Truex, Matthew; Windom, John H.

Subject: FW: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request

BB Ve are looking for John’s/PEO official guidance on the FOIA request concerning
comments from Bruce Moskowitz etc. See details below and attached.

Thanks in advance!

From:

Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2018 9:49 AM

To: Windom, John H.

Cc: Truex, Matthew

Subject: Looking for your guidance on FOIA Request

John — We have the matrix of external review comments that was specified in the FOIA request
and have redacted the specific reviewer names. The spreadsheet includes comments from all
external reviewers accumulated through a series of calls and emails and may exceed the FOIA
ask which was: “copies of a spreadsheet prepared by John Windom'’s staff since Feb. 1, 2018,
showing all the comments made on a conference call with David Shulkin, Scott Blackburn, Marc
Sherman and Bruce Moskowitz. The spreadsheet showed how the comments had been
addressed and what actions needed to be taken” Any of the many external comments can be
spun into a story if that is the intent of the FOIA ask. Should we limit our response to only those
comments recorded from Marc Sherman and Bruce Moscowitz? Or is that reading this too
literally? The redacted spreadsheet is attached. Note that reviewer 5 is Marc Sherman —
speaking on behalf of himself and Bruce Moskowitz.
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Thanks for your guidance on this!

Computer Engineer

Office of Acquisition Operations
Technology Acquisition Center
Department of Veterans Affairs
23 Christopher Way
Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

!I

va.gov
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| 8- O¥443-F
Isaac Arnsdorf

Journalist
ProPublica

2620 13th StNW
ciol
Washington, DC 20009 REGEIVED DATE © > O TINR
LCm— o IROL # Co = O AU -F

V
June 01, 2018 HA FOIA OFFICE

FOIA Officer

Department of Veterans Affairs:

Central Office

810 Vermont Avenue, NW

Department of Veterans Affairs, (005R1C)
i 20

vacofoiaservice@va.gov

FOIA REQUEST

Fee waiver requested
Dear FOIA Officer:
Pursuant to the federal Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, I request access to and copies of a
spreadsheet prepared by John Windom's staff since Feb. 1, 2018, showing all the comments made on a
conference call with David Shulkin, Scott Blackburn, Marc Sherman and Bruce Moskowitz. The spreadsheet
showed how the comments had been addressed and what actions needed to be taken.

I would like to receive the information in its original electronic format.

I agree to pay reasonable duplication fees for the processing of this request in-an amount not to exceed $250.
However, please notify me prior to your incurring any expenses in excess of that amount.

Please waive any applicable fees. Release of the information is in the public interest because it will
contribute significantly to public understanding of govemment operations and activities. I am a journalist
primarily engaged in the dissemination of information.

If my request is denied in whole or part, I ask that you justify all deletions by reference to specific
exemptions of the act. I will also expect you to release all segregable portions of otherwise exempt material.
I, of course, reserve the right to appeal your decision to withhold any information or to deny a waiver of fees.
I would appreciate your communicating with me by email or telephone, rather than by mail.

I look forward to your determination regarding my request within 20 business days, as the statute requires.

Thank you for your assistance.
Sincerely, -
BT AR :
| JUND& 2 J
Isaac Amsdorf a

8Y: FOIA SERVICE
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/§-08443-F

VACO FOIA Service Inbox

From: Isaac Arnsdorf via iFOIA.org <iarnsdorf.127203@mail.ifoia.org>
Sent: Friday, June 01, 2018 5:05 PM

To: VACO FOIA Service Inbox

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Public Records Request

Attachments: Windom spreadsheet.pdf

Reply ABOVE THIS LINE

Dear FOIA Officer:

Attached is a formal request for public records. Please feel free to contact me at this email address or at 203-464-1409
with any questions.

Thank you for your assistance.
Sincerely,

Isaac Arnsdorf

This message was sent via iFOIA.org. If you have questions about IFOIA, please refer to the About page or emall ifola-help@rcipors.

This message was sent via iFOIA.org.

! CEivE i
JUN 0 4 2018 U
BY:E!zgijigfﬁﬂ;gi
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From: Truex, Matthew
Sent: 19 Jun 2018 08:48:06 -0500

To: Windom, John H.;Foster, Michele (SES)__

Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.;Morris, Genevieve (0S/ONC/I10)

hhs.gov);Zenooz, Ashwini;Short, John (VACO) SIS TIIINIEGgGEGEGEGEGEE
Subject: RE: Update_Important Request
Attachments: External Reviewers.xlsx

John — Updated to include organization/affiliation.

Thanks,
Matt

Matthew Truex

Contracting Officer

Department of Veterans Affairs

Office of Procurement, Acquisition and Logistics
Technology Acquisition Center

23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, New Jersey 07724
Orfice: NS
Mobile: [ESIIEG
e-mei| N 2 oV

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
B 2/ ¢ pcrmanently delete the original and any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereof.”

From: Windom, John H.
Sent: Monday, June 18, 2018 5:00 PM

To: Truex, Matthew; Foster, Michele (SES);— ;“

Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO hhs.gov); Zenooz,
Ashwini; Short, John (VACO),ﬂ'

Subject: RE: Update_Important Request

Matt,

Please add their organization for clarity.

Vr

John

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
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Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEO EHRM)
811 Vermont Avenue NW
Washington, DC 20420
Office [N

Mobil [N

Executive Assistant: |||}l Aovointments and Scheduling

va.gov Office: [N SHIIGEG

From: Truex, Matthew

Sent: Monday, June 18, 2018 4:07 PM

To: Windom, John H.; Foster, Michele (SES) _ —
Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO) (Genevieve.Morris@hhs.gov); Zenooz,
Ashwini; Short, John (VACO); [N

Subject: RE: Update_Important Request

John,

As requested, provided is a listing of non-VA employees (at that time) who were involved in the
various external reviews during the EHRM acquisition phase. Listing was generated based on
the numerous MITRE led reviews and White House review(s).

Thanks,
Matt

Matthew Truex

Contracting Officer

Department of Veterans Affairs

Office of Procurement, Acquisition and Logistics
Technology Acquisition Center

23 Christopher Way

Eatontown, New Jersey 07724
Office:d

Mobile NS IEEGG

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
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prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me via return e-mail or te!ephor?e-
and permanently delete the original and any copy of any e-mail and any printout thereot.”

From: Windom, John H.
Sent: Saturday, June 16, 2018 1:43 AM
To: Truex, Matthew; Foster, Michele (SES); _;

Cc: Sandoval, Camilo J.; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO) (Genevieve.Morris@hhs.gov); Zenooz,
Ashwini; Short, John (VACO);

Subject: Update_Important Request

Michele and TAC Team:
This request comes directly from the Acting Secretary in support of hearing preps. Please provide a list

of names of the non-VA employees (supporting various external reviews) that have signed NDAs to
review our EHRM acquisition/program documents in advance of contract award (May 17’ 2018).

Thank you,
John

John H. Windom, Senior Executive Service (SES)
Program Executive for Electronic Health Record Modernization (PEO EHRM)

811 Vermont Avenue NW

Washington, DC 20420
office NG
Mobile: {EINEG_N

Executive Assistant: (SIS /ppointments and Scheduling

RIRE- - <o office: (RIS
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Intermountain Healthcare

US Navy/SPAWAR

Massachusetts General Hospital

Mitre

Collective Medical Technologies, Inc.

University of California, Los Angeles/American College of Surgeons

LAST FIRST Organization/Affiliation
Harvard Medical School/Boston's Children Hospital
Sutter Health

US Army/DHA
Massachusetts General Hospital/Partners Healthcare System

Carelourney
Indiana Health Information Exchange
Mitre
Mitre
The Mayo Clinic
Mitre
Mayo Clinic
Geisinger
Kaiser Permanente
Ascention Health
Kaiser Permanente
Mitre
Lahey Health
Leavitt Parners, LLC
Morris Genevieve Office of the National Coordinatorfor Health Information Technology (ONC)
Moskowitz Bruce Internist/External Expert Participant
Universal Health Services
American College of Surgeons
University of Washington Medical Center
Perlmutter lke CEO Marvel Entertainment
Intermountain Healthcare
Johns Hopkins University
Mitre
Mitre
Johns Hopkins University
The Mayo Clinic
Mitre
Mitre
Mitre
Sherman Marc Alvarez & Marsal

DHA/DHMS

University of Pittsburgh Medical Center

The Healthcare Information and Management Systems Society
US Air Force

University of Washington

Mitre

Mitre

Mitre

HealthSouth

000046



From: Sandoval, Camilo J.

Sent: 31 May 2018 12:00:00 -0500
Tor 0 R

Cc: Ullyot, John;Hutton, James;Windom, John H.;Morris, Genevieve
(OS/ONC/10);Truex, Matthew

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

Attachments: VA EHRM Interoperability Review Report Jan 2018 FINAL.PDF, VA EHRM

Interoperability Review Report Executive Summary Jan 2018 FINAL.PDF

attached

Camilo Sandoval

From:

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 12:37 PM

To: Fleck, Robert R. (OGC); Sandoval, Camilo J.

Cc: Ullyot, John; Hutton, James; Windom, John H.; Morris, Genevieve (0OS/ONC/IO); Truex, Matthew;

Su!_lect: RE: EXTERNAL’ MITRE report on EHR
Can someone share the reports with me and | will work with OGC to see if they are releasable?

Thanks,

Press Secretary
Department of Veterans Affairs

NN 2 cov

From: Fleck, Robert R. (OGC)
Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 12:27 PM

T va.gov>; Sandoval, Camilo J.‘va.gow

o:
Cc: Ullyot, John {ENEEI V2 sov>; Hutton, James SIS - .50\ >; \Windom, John H.
jva.gow; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO) -)hhs.gov>; Truex,

Matthew Dva.gov>;
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on

va.gov>

Most likely the last two.

Bob

Robert R. Fleck

Chief Counsel, Procurement Law Group
Office of the General Counsel
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810 Vermont Avenue, NW

ATTENTION: This electronic transmission may contain attorney work-product or information protected
under the attorney-client privilege. Portions of this transmission may contain information also protected
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 USC §552. Do not release this information
without prior authorization from the sender. [f this has inadvertently reached the wrong party, please
delete this information immediately and notify the sender. Any security screening of this email by
information officers or server administrators is not intended to be consent to any party to review the
content of the email or a waiver of the attorney-client privilege and/or work product privilege.

From: [[DEEINEGN

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 12:22 PM

To: Fleck, Robert R. (OGC); Sandoval, Camilo J.

Cc: Ullyot, John: Hutton, James; Windom, John H.; Morris, Genevieve (OS/ONC/IO); Truex, Matthew;

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

What is the main report that the public is aware of?

Press Secretary
Department of Veterans Affairs

va.go

|

From: Fleck, Robert R. (OGC)

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 12:12 PM

To: Sandoval, Camilo J. <\l SIIIIENGG 2 cov>
Cc: Ullyot, John {JNSI> va.gov>; Hutton, James

mx Morris, Genevieve (0S/ONC/IO)
NS - 2 <o Truex, Matthew

va.gov>; Windom, John H.

Va.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

Mr. Sandoval,
There are several MITRE reports prepared for the EHR acquisition. The reports are:

Red Team Review (VA EHRM Listening Forum): Best Practice Insights -
September 7, 2017

Blue Team Review: Independent Assessment — September 29, 2017
MITRE Interoperability Review and Report - February 1, 2018

Interoperability Review Report -MITRE/law firm report
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The MITRE Interoperability Review and Report - February 1, 2018, was requested by a
private equities firm on February 28, 2018. The report has not been released and is
currently in the queue for FOIA review.

Once we understand which report(s) the reporter has requested, the request for the
report(s) could be treated as a FOIA request. An answer to a FOIA request would take
some time. If we would like to provide the report(s) more responsively, the report(s)
could be reviewed in accordance with FOIA principles, i.e., redacted for proprietary
material, personally identifiable information and other protected information, and then
released. However, a rationale supporting a different process for the prior request now
in the queue would be needed..

As you may be aware, CliniComp currently has an appeal to the Federal Circuit on a
ruling by the Court of Federal Claims denying a protest of the award to Cerner. As a
result, In addition to the FOIA analysis, any release will need to be coordinated with
DOJ.

Bob

Robert R. Fleck

Chief Counsel, Procurement Law Group
Office of the General Counsel

Room

810 Vermont Avenue, NW

Washington, DC, 20420
orric- I

ATTENTION: This electronic transmission may contain attorney work-product or information protected
under the attorney-client privilege. Portions of this transmission may contain information also protected
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 USC §552. Do not release this information
without prior authorization from the sender. If this has inadvertently reached the wrong party, please
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

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 10:14 AM

To:mﬂeck, Robert R. (OGC)

Cc: Ullyot, John; Hutton, James; Windom, John H.; Morris, Genevieve (0OS/ONC/IO)
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

Bob,

Is the Mitre report still considered classified at this point in time? A reporter from the Wall Street
Journal is inquiring below.
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Thank you,
Camilo

From:

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 6:10:42 AM

To: Sandoval, Camilo J.

Cc: Ullyot, John; Hutton, James

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

Do you have time to discuss the below this morning?

Press Secretary
Department of Veterans Affairs

va.gov

From: Benjamin Kesling [mailto_@wsi.com]

Sent: Thursday, May 31, 2018 7:32 AM
To: va.gov>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

The decision was made weeks ago, but it will have enduring effects and | am trying to piece together
what those will be and what went into the thought process. This seems to be a report that has a
repository of relevant data and since a decision has been made, ought to be publicly available by this
time. I'd also very much like to speak with the top information officer at VA about the way forward with
the Cerner contract and open-architecture issues.

Thanks very much
Ben

Ben Kesling
Staff Reporter

The Wall Street Journal

IO
Irag mobile

@bkesling

On May 30, 2018, at 14:47 I - - o> wrote:

Thanks, Ben. That decision was made weeks ago. Can you walk me through the angle your piece a bit?
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Press Secretary
Department of Veterans Affairs

va.gov

From: Ben Kesling [mailto:_@wsi.com]

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 5:34 PM

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

I'm writing about the EHR decision and would like to have the report that helped inform the decision.
I'm putting together something initially by the end of the week. If the report is not going to be widely

distributed or available it could affect timeline.

Thanks,
Ben

On Tue, May 29, 2018 at 5:05 PM, Cashour, Curtis -N_a.gg> wrote:

I will check. What is the specific angle of your story and deadline?

Thanks,

Press Secretary
Department of Veterans Affairs

Va.gov

[

From: Ben Kesling [mailto wsj.com

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 4:44 PM
To: va.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] MITRE report on EHR

Could | get a copy of the Mitre report on EHR implementation from earlier this year and which | don't
think has been publicly released?

Thank you,
Ben

Ben Kesling
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Staff Reporter
The Wall Street Journal
IO

raq mobi NG

@bkesling

Ben Kesling
Staff Reporter
The Wall Street Journal

Iraq mobile [N
@bkesling
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